
Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, February 28, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier, Elaine Powell,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
23-0143  WORKFORCE ECONOMY 
   
The Board receive as information a presentation on the workforce economy.  
 
Dr. Laura Ullrich, Senior Regional Economist at the Charlotte branch of the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Richmond, gave the presentation. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

2 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

3 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

4 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

5 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

6 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

7 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

8 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

9 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

10 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

11 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

12 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Altman thanked County Manager Diorio for bringing forth the presentation. She talked 

about the last slide and encouraging youth – that she believed Mecklenburg County youth didn’t know 

where they should be orienting themselves for jobs in the future. She said she was looking for the 

County to develop a strategy for workforce development priority. Dr. Ullrich said the North Carolina East 

Alliance (which consisted of 29 eastern counties) were working with 29 school districts, 14 community 

colleges, and other 4-year colleges to redefine education as K through 16. She said they had kicked off 

the “VISION 2023” program, which was meant to educate educators. 

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell thanked Dr. Ullrich.  She said she appreciated how Dr. Ullrich 

pointed out that creative leaders needed to be future-focused. She said the policies regarding 

immigration spoke to her the most, as the narrative that the country was proliferating was so opposite 

to what being sustainable was. She said concerning Slide 17, to be economically vulnerable one had to 

be less than 150% of the poverty level. She said for all the things they were involved in, those were the 

numbers they needed to look at. Dr. Ullrich said that by looking at the different government assistance 



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

13 

 

programs, healthy single males wouldn’t qualify. She said the safety net for men looked different than 

the one for women.  

Commissioner Jerrell thanked Dr. Ullrich.  He said it seemed like they were going through rapid change 

and were living in a different world. He said the interesting thing about slides 10 and 11 was 

participation rates. He said he wanted to see if the labor force between African Americans was from a 

qualitative perspective. He said previously there was the ability to screen out people, but now they had 

to be screen in. 

Dr. Ullrich said with some of the rapid acceleration, they had seen some advances such as some HR 

practices, which had likely improved for black male opportunities. She said the wealth gap played a role. 

She said she had looked by age and saw that black male participation was up over 65%, while every 

other demographic was down. She said that due to the wealth gap, black men didn’t have $1.2 million to 

retire and had to work for longer periods. 

Commissioner Meier thanked Dr.Ullrich.  She asked if she believed there was a place for undocumented 

immigrants. Dr. Ullrich said that border crossings were up, but she mentioned that people also came 

from other countries outside of Mexico. She said the legal path was shut down and hadn’t come back 

and if they needed talent in other areas, there needed to be a more targeted approach.  

Commissioner Meier said men were working less, and asked if they were seeing an increase in 

government assistance. Dr. Ullrich said they were seeing an increase in disability assistance. She said 

most of the government assistance programs were designed for people with dependent children or the 

elderly.  

Commissioner Leake thanked her. She asked what future did they have as it related to generations 

today, being that the quality of education had declined.  Dr. Ullrich said they were not seeing the 

flexibility and creativity in education, she hadn’t seen innovative ways to education post-COVID, and 

there needed to be drastic shifts. She said she liked the concept of educating educators. She said it was 

great to have immigration, but they had to take care of the kids that were born here, educate them 

thoroughly, and provide them with economic opportunities. She said to get to these pathways, drastic 

changes had to be made to education. She said they had to show kids early on there are economic 

opportunities, and that there was the technology to do those things.  

Commissioner Cotham said if companies were recruiting the same way they were in 2019, they were 

going to have trouble retaining employees and had to adapt. 

Chair Dunlap said he had the same difficulty in understanding why Congress wouldn’t lay out a path for 

immigrants to become citizens if they knew the information that was presented. He asked who was 

educating Congress. Dr. Ullrich said some things were difficult politically; but there were economic 

answers that were clear, while the political side was challenging.  



Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2023 
 

14 

 

Chair Dunlap said North Carolina students that graduate was college and career-ready and asked if it 

should have been changed to college or career-ready. Dr. Ullrich said they were over-reliant on sending 

kids to 4-year colleges, but it could be the equalizer for greater opportunity if they went and finished. She 

said some would be better served if they were career-ready instead.  

Chair Dunlap said in Mecklenburg County there were a lot of different groups doing workforce 

development. He asked Dr. Ullrich, as an advisor, who she would have recommended to lead workforce 

development. Dr. Ullrich said the person who was willing to be the most innovative, but that would differ 

in different communities.  

Chair Dunlap said that the government was a group that suffered the most. He asked Dr. Ullrich, if 

advising the government, what would she recommend doing to turn the tide and to attract and retain a 

quality workforce.  Dr. Ullrich said that, people had left customer-facing jobs, some left due to wages, 

but that was not always the reason. She said state and local governments had to think even more about 

flexibility, recruiting strategies, and deeper relationships in higher education and K-12. She said changes 

were hard and different depending on the industry but had to be considered.  

 

23-0146  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chair 
 
 


